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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY

LIMITED ("the Compdly"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3l't March 2022, and

the Statement of Profit and Loss, State*.rrt of changes in equity and Statement of cash flows

for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 37,20D2, and

profit/loss, and its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We eonducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenls

section of ourreport. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements

*nt are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies

Ad,2Al3 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act,2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial

Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial performance.

ity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
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the Act" This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and

for prevpnting and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
:appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's

ability to contique as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,

but is not a.guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identifir and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

one resulting from elror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the

Companies Act,2013,\ /e are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the

company has adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements

in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's

ability to continue as a going concerr. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
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required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the



ilnanr:ial statements or" if such disclosures are inadequate. to modif! our opinion. Our

eonclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auclitor's report.
' Holvever, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concetrl.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the f-rnancial slatements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves 1-air presentation.

We c6rnmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficieneies in intemal control that we identify during our audit"

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with thern all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Reporl) Order,2016 ("the Order"), issued by the

Central Ggvernment of India in terms of sub-section (11) tlf section 143 of the Ceimpanies Act,

2013, we give in the Annexure- A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4

of the C)rder, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(5) of the Act. we give in Annexure B, a statement on the matters

specified in the Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor Cieneral of India in respect of

the Company.

As recluired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reporl that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(a) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so fbr as it appears from our examination of those books

(b) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proht and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statemenl dealt

lvith by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(c) In our opinion, the afbresaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(d) AspertheNotificationNo.GSR463(E)dated5thJune20l5issuedbylvfinistryofCorporate
Affairs, Government of tndia" provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies

Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

(e) With respect to the adequacy of the internal frnancial controls over financial reporting of

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reporl

in "Annexure - C".
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Wi.th respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rr:le 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best

ulour infbrmation and according to the explanations given to us:

a. 'l'he Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial

position in its financial statements - Refer Note 46 to the Standalone Financial

Slatements.

b. 'Ihe Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts

tor which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c, There were no amounts w-hich w'ere required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Place: Salem

Date: 11.05.2022

For N.D.PANI & D.B.R.GUPT'HA
Chartered Accountants

Partner.

Membership No.029793
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No: 45/ 1 7,
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. ANNEXURE -'Ar to the Independent Auditor's Report
,\

Annexure ret'erred to in our repofi of even date to the members of SAIL REFRACTORY

COMPANY LIMITED on the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March

2022

i) In respect of its hxed assets:

a) The Unit has maintained proper records showing in most cases, full

particulars including quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

b) The fixed assets of the Unit have been physically verif-red by the

management at reasonable intervals in a phased rnanner so as to generally

cover all the assets other than land holdings once in three years. As infonned

to us, no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification

wherever reconciliation has been carried out.

. In respect of Freehold Land holdings, the Company has partially surt,eyed

them to ensure that they are.free from clny encumbrance and encroachments.

In rest of the cases survey is yet to be completed. The Company is follawing

ttp with survey departmentfor completion offull survey

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on thc basis

of our examination of tlte records of the Plant/[]nit, the title/lease deed-s o-{'

immovable properties are held in the name o.f the erstwhile Burn Standard

Company Ltcl and ore yet to be transferred in the name of the Compctny"

if As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management

with reasonable fiequency during the year. In certain cases, the stocks have been

verifled on the basis of visual survey/estimates. The discrepancies between physical

stocks and book records arising out of physical verification, which were not material,

have been dealt with in the books of account.

iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms.

limited liability partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under

section 189 of the Cornpanies Act, 2013. llence, the clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b) and (iii) (c)

of the paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

ivl l'he Company has not granted any loans or made any investment or given any guarantee

and security covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

y) fhe Clompany has not accepted any deposits trom the public within the meaning of the

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and provisions of' sections 73 to 75 ar

any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under.

fherefore the provision of clause (v) of the paragraph 3 & 4 of the order are not



vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts and records maintained by the
company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for maintenance of
cost record under Sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,Z0l3 read with
Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 and are of the opinion that, prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. we have,
however not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determining
whether they are accurate and complete;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of the accounts and records:

i
a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,

including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and
Services Tax and other Statutory Dues with the appropriate authorities.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 3l't March, 2022 for
a period of more than 6 months from the date on when they become payable except
the following:-

Statute Nature of Dues
Amount

(Rs. in crore)
Forum where disputes

are pending.
Tamilnadu

General Sales

Tax Act

Form XVII
Year:2003-2005 1.34 High court, Chennai

Central Sales

Tax Act
'C' form dues

Year:2003-2005 1.68 High court, Chennai

i

vii)

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
company has not defaulted in the repayment of banks dues. The Compaiy has not taken
any loan either from financial institutions or from the Government and has not issued
any debentures.

i*) Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term loans.

x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us' no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Companyty its officers or
employees has been noticed oi reported during the year.

xi) As per Notitication No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of Inclia, provisions of Section 197 is not applicable to
the Government Companies. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3 (xi) oftn. Order
are not applicable to the Company.

visions of clause 3 (xii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

W



xiii) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sec. I8l &.188 of the Companies
Act 2013 with reference to the transactions with the related parties, where applicable,

. details of the transaction with the related parties have been disclosed in Note No.44 of
the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standard.

xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of
paragraph 3 (xiv) of the order are not applicable to the company.

xv) The Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, as covered under Section 192 of the Companies Ac1 2013.
Accortlingly,parugraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
oflndia Act1934.

Place: Salem

Date: 11.05.2022
For N.D.PANI & D.B.R.GUPTHA
Chartered Accountants'"1(s\
(cA.L. NATARAJAT$
Partner.

Membership No.029793

Uerru : 2sa24ffilSetq2 f2ryag-

'r.>'/ al2sss S \?
:l _Nr:4it1t, li;{-ffi;::#li, }T



; "Anneihre C" to the Independent Auditor's Report of everr date on the Standalone Ind

AS Finaneial Statements of SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED

Report on thc Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) nf Suh-section 3 of Section 143

of the Companies Actr 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over hnancial reporting of SAIL Refractory

Company Limited ("the Company") as of March3l,2022 in conjunction with our audit of the

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
;

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute Chartered Accountants of India. These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial contiols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct

of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act,2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance withthe Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")

and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section

143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial

controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India" Those Standards and the Guidance Note require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on

the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind

AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
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Meanidg of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind

AS Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes

those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable

detail, accurately and. fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance

with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the lnd AS Financial

Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporling to future periods are subject

to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate"

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to

financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at March 31,2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Salem

Date: 11.A5.2022

For N"D.PAI\I & D.B.R.GUPTHA
Chartered Accountants

Firm No: 0025555 \_:2,ilate
[ \\ k

L.\\0.$*a\
(cA.L. NATARAJAN)
Parlner.

Membership No.02979"i
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Annexure-B to the Independent Auditor,s Report

Place: Salem

Date: 11.05.2022
For N.D.PANI & D.B.R.GUPTHA
Chartered Accountants

Partner.

Membership No.029793

trDm : 9-2-o>q+q3A suTfz?+os1
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Directions under section 143(5) of
Companies Act 2013

QUESTIONS AUDITOR'S COMMENTS

Whether the cot'npany has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If yeS, the implications of
processing of accounting transactions outside
IT system on the inlegrity of the accounts along
with the financial implications, if any, may be
stated.

Yes, the Plant/Unit has strong system in place
to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system. The plant/Unit has
authentic procedure for processing of
accounting transactions outside the IT system
and there is no doubt on the integrity of the
accounts.

Whetherthere is any restructuring 
"f " *irti"g

loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts
/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the
company due to the company,s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a Government
company, then this direction is also applicable
for statutory auditor of lender co

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Whether funds received/receivabie for specific
schemes from centrall state agencies were
properly accounted forl utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Not applicable.

I.s!:l,g'.li1ij*,,
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."/ SAIL REFRACTORY coMpANy LIMITEn, sarem

Ealance Sheet as at 31st Mzrch,2022
{

Signifi cant Accounting Policies t-3
'Ihe accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese standalone financial statements.

TS*et
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(M KCHANDRA)
coo

For and on behalf of the Board of Direct

I'iu1t
(ANIRBAN DASGUPTA)

CHAIRNIAN
(DIN:06832261)

As per our report ofeven date

for N.D.PANI & D.B.R.GUPTHA

CHA RTERED.ACCOUNTA:,{TSi \" \v
L.\Xu*x^1

(cA. L. NlTlRAJAN) 
o

Partner, NI.No. 029793

Firm No: 0025555

All amounts in { Crores. unless otherwise sta

Particulars
Note

No.

As at 31st

March, 2022

As at 31st

March,202l

Non-current assets

(a) Propertl,, Plant and Equipment

(b) Clap itat ivork-in-progress
(c) R-ight ofuse assets

(d) Intangible assets
(e) F'inanciai Assets

(i) 1 rade receivables
(ii) Loans
(iii) Other financial assets

(f) Deferred tax assets (net)

(g) Current tax assets (net)

(h) Other non-eurrent assets

Current assets

(a) lnventories
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Irade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv') Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

4

5

4a

6

7

8

9

10

i1
t2

IJ

14

ls (i)
1s (ii)

t6
l7

20.20

0.06

0.06

0.07

0"70

2.15

2.84

38.26

34.02

t t.78
66.45

0.42

2.06

18.22

2.t5
0.08

0.r0

0.90

0.07

6.25

0"87

0.78

5.84

62.13

29.70

49.81

65.95

0.21

0.22

TOTAL ASSETS 239.07 243.34

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equitv share capital
(b) Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Lease liability
(ii)'frade payables

(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Defened tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Lease liability
(ii) Trade payables

(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)

18

19

20

2l
22

10

23

24
25

26
27

0.10

163.98

0.03

3.34

34.51

tl.87
0.06

0.04

3.82

t9.32
0.14

1.20

0.66

0.10

149.3t

0.07

4.10
73.0r

1 

_86

0.02

0.59

6.61

0.11

1.56

TOTAL EOUITY & LIABILITIES 239.07 243.34

t&* Wr{
(P"K.ROUT)

GM(F&A)

Place: Salem

Date: 11.05.2022

UD nr : zLo 2q+ qBA 9v D?274f.9-

(V. NANDAGOPAL)

,r3:'fr4
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(DIN:07476973)



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY
Statement o,f tsrofit & Loss for the year ended 3lst
(All amoiints in { Crores, unless otherwise stated)

LIMITED,
March,2022

sarem fsh
IIIITIIIIII

Particulars
Note

No.

Year ended

31st March, 2022

Year ended

31st March, 2021

llncome
I

I Revenue lionr ()ps141i665
I

lother Income

iTotul tn.orn*
I

I

I

| 
[.xpenses

t-
l('ost 

ol materials consumed

l(.-hanges rn rrventories of finished goods and work in progress
I

Emplolee benefits expense

Finance cnsls

Deprecialron and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit/Loss (-) before tax

Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Profit/Loss (-) for the year

Other comprehensive income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to

Other Comprehensive Income/Loss (-) for the year

Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (-) for the year

28

29

30

31

)z

JJ

4

34

198.48

9.22

t47.98

6.47

207.70 154.4s

113.66

5.45

15.75

0.01

0.85

41.24

77.42

8.06

15.11

0 "01

0.78

36.77

t79.96 138.r 5

27.74

7.25

0.83

16.30

4"30

0.12

8.08 4"42

t9.66 11.88

0.41

(0. 1 0)

( 1.53

0"38

0.31 1.15)

19.97 10.73

Signifi cant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral paft

l_3

of these standalone financial statements"

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

)r"+-
(P.K.R0tro

GMG&A) coo

hW
(ANTRBANDASGTIPTA)

CEAIR]IIAN

@IN:06832261)

As per our report of even ilate

for N.D.PAI{ & D.B.R"GLTTIIA

\,.

\.i\*'"
(v.NAIIDAG0PAL)

hIDEPINDtrNTDIRECTOR

@trY:07476973)

CII{RTERED ACCOTN{T

L\
Place: Salem

Date: 11.05.2022

(cA. L. NATARAJAN)

Partner, NI.No. 029793

Firm No: 0025555

Uorru : 22o29 + 1 BAD Dg pZ" 4{S
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SATL REFRACTORY COMPANY
Cash Ftow Statement for the year ended 3lst

LIMITED, Salem

NIarch 2022

omounts in ? Crares, unless otlterwise stated)

Particulars 3lst Nlarch 2022 3lst March 2021

(lash llow from operating activities

Net profit before tax

Adj ustments fnr:

Deprecration zurd amortisation

Loss i t Garn ) disposal ol assets

Provisron for doubtful trade receivables

Provisron for siou'moving and obsolete inventory

Interesi ineome

I inancc rusts

Unrealised J .ossl( (iain) on loreign exchange fl uctuations

Operating cash flo$s before working capital changes

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(lncrease)iDecrease in trade receivables

r IncreareJ Detrease in inrentories

r Inerease )iDecrease in other short term financial

( lncrease)/Decrease in other assets

Irrcreasei ( Decrease). in trade pavables

.ncr(aic , Decrcate t in long term provisions

Increase/(Decrease) in short term provisions

Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities

{ncreasel(Decrease) in other liabilities

Cash flow generated from operations

lncome taxes pard (net of refi.rnds)

Net cash florv from operating actiyities

Cash florv from invcsting activities

Purehase or construction of Propert)',plant and equipment

Bank deposits (having original marurit_v of more than three months.) (net)

Interest received

\et cash generated from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Divrdend paid

Net cash used by financing activities

Net cash increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 1,ear

Cash and cash eqr.rivalents at the end olthe 1,'ear

Nlovement in cash balance

Reconciliation ofcash and cash equiyalents as per cash florv statement

Cash and oash equivalents as per above comprise ofthe following

Cash on hand

Balances rvith banks

On cun-ent accounts

On deposits r.vith original matririty upto 3 months

11 1 I

085

0.09

(0.0s)

120

(5.30)

0.01

0.10

16.30

0.78

0.05

(5.0 1 t

0.01

24.64 12.13

(3.42)

23.87

0.18

(0.e 1)

4.01

(0.36)

(2s.75)

0.69

2.66

26.94

(0.02)

0.32

( r.34)

0.85

(0.75)

(1.77)

(0.0e)

25.72

(6.001

38.93

(4.70)

19.72 34"23

(2 86)

5.05

5.30

(3.94

(21 29

3"78

7.49 (2t.45)

(5.30)

(s.30)

21.9t

49.87

71.78

12.78

37.09

49.87

21.91 12.78

23.51

48.27

23.2t

26.66

7t.78 49.87

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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(P"riRotrT)
Gl,I(F&A)

Plaee: Salem

Date: 11"05"2022
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPAI{Y LIMITED, Salem
Statement of qhanges in equity for the year ended 31st March,2022
(All smounts in '{ Crrsres, unless otherwise stated)

B Othe

Signifi cant Accounting Policies l-3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

Fot and on behalf of the Boatd of Directors

rSAt
IIIIIIIIIII

A Share ital

Particulars
Balance as at

lst April, 2021

Changes in

equity share

capital

Balance as at 3Lst

March,2022

Equity shares with voting rights 0.10 0.10

r [qu
Capital

Reserve

General

Reserve

Retained

Earnings
Total

Balance as at lst Ap.ril,202l

Profitr(loss) fo,r the year

Other eomprehensive (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

Equity Dividend

Interim Dividend & Tax

Transttr

43.10 13.84

1.97

9t.77

19 "66

0.31

t9.97

5.30

(t.e7)

149.31

19.66

0.31

19.97

5.30

Balance as at 3lst March,2022 43.70 15.81 104.47 r63.98

/-

1("r - V/
(P.rcRou0

Glr(F&A)

Place: Salem

Date; 11.05"2022

OTKCIIANIDRA)
coo

l$"1r_
(A.\:IRBAN DASGUPIA)
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[DN: 06832261)

^A.s per our report ofeven date

for N.D.PANI & D.B"R.GLIP'IR{

Partner, llf.No . 0297 93

Firm No: 002555S
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SAICM

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March,2022

' 1. Corporate and General Information
, SAIL Refractory Company Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on 23 August 2011.

On 16 December 2011, the Company acquired Salem refractory works of Burn Standard

Company Limited ('BSCL') as part of the financial restructuring of BSCL approved by the

cabinet committee of Economic Affairs (Government of tndia). The Company is engaged

in production of calcined magnesite, mag-carb bricks and dunite. The Company is having

production facility at Salem, Tamil Nadu. The registered office of the Company is situated

at Salem steel plantl Salem Tamil Nadu, India.

These financial statements were approved by the Boarci of Directors of the Company in
their meeting held on 11th }y'ray 2022.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The finansial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting

in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards Qnd AS) as prescribed under Section

133 of Companies Act, 2013, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted

in India. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods

presented.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

o certain financial assets and liabilities which are classified as fair value through

profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive ineome;

o assets held for sale, at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less cost to

sell;

. defined benefit plans and plan assets.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees ((), which is the

Company's functional currency. All financial information presented in { have been

roundeil off to the nearest two decimals of Crore unless otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of Estimates and Management Judgement

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with Company's Accounting Policies,

management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial

statements, the amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period and notes to

the Financial Statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates" Any revision to

such estimates is recognised in the period in which the same is determined.

Current versus Non-current classification

Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cun"ent/ non-

nt classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:
:\

./, ;.-i

- l':t



S;{IL REFRACTORY COMPALTY LIMITED, Sulem

r f:xpected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Heki primarily for the pulpose of trading

r -. f:lxpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

r (-'ash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classihed as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

c [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

r lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. [t is due to be settled within tw-elve months after the reporting period, or

r lhere is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

,,\ll other liabilities are classified as non-current.

fhe oporating cycle is the time betrn'een the acquisition of assets for processing and their

reaiisation in cash and cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified

as non-current assets and liabilities.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial

statements is given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
the periods presented in the financial statements.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

3.1"1 Recognition and Measurement

Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or

services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The initial cost at cash price

equivalence of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price,

including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable costs

of bringing the assets to its working condition and location and present value of any

obligatory decommissioning costs for its intended use. Plant and Machinery also include

assets held under finance lease.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in
construction, direct labour, allocation of overheads, directly attributable bonowing costs

including trial run expenses (net of revenue)

Spares having useful life of more than one year and having value of Rs. l0 lakhs or more

in each case. are capitalised under the respective heads as and when available for use.

or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the

ment of Profit and Loss.



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SAICM

3.1.2 Subsequent Cost

Subsequent expenditure is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset or
, . recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, oniy when it is probable that future economic

; benefits derived from the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item

can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of replaced item (s) is derecognised. .

Any repair of Rs. 50 lakhs or more of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the

can"ying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits of the costs

irrcun"ed will flow to the Company. The carrying amount of the replaced item (s) is

derecognised.

.,j

3"1"3 Depreciafion
Depreciation on tangible assets and investment property is provided on straight line

method, considering residual value of 5%o of the cost of the asset, over the useful lives of
the'assets, as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act,20l3 except in case of Factory

Buildings, Plant and Machinery, Water Supply & Sewerage and Railway Lines & Sidings

and components thereof, where usefirl life is determined by technical experts. The useful

life assur4ed by the technical experts is as under:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)

Factory Buildings

Plant and Machinery

Water Supply & Sewerage

Railway Lines & Sidings

35 to 40

10 to 40

25 to 40

35 to 40

F'or these classes ofassets, based on technical evaluation carried out by external technical

experts, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period

over which Company expects to use these assets" Hence, the useful lives for these assets

are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the

Companies Act 2013.

The estimated useful lives and residual values of depreciable/ amortisable assets are

reviewed at each year end, with the eftbct of any changes in estimate accounted lor on a

prospective basis.

Where the historical cost of a depreciable asset undergoes a change, the depreciation on

the revised unamortised depreciable amount is provided over the residual useful life of the

asset. Depreciation on additiorV deletion during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with

reference to the month of addition/ deletion. Assets costing up to Rs. 5000r- are fully

depreciated in the year in which they are put to use.

Depreciation on capital spares is provided over the useful life of the spare or remaining

useful life of the mother asset. as reassessed. whichever is lower.

3"2 Intangible assets

3.2.1 Recognition and measurement

t(*I*i iihqi"e Rights
{/ i-,\:--z---* , ';"9---t ---D^--"

',r-jr.' ,_, . + ',Minl4g Rights are treated as Intangible Assets and all related costs thereof are arnortised
": t' LJ.\ i'f i 

''--r,,r 
. ,1 1 , 1 ," , I . I r r 1r

#u6pd;$} 

basis of annual production to the total estimated mineable reserves. In case the
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SAICM

mining rights are not renewed, the balance related cost will be charged to revenue in the

year of decision of non- renewal.

Acciuisition Cost i.e. cost associated with acquisition of licenses, and rights to explore

including related professional fees, payment towards statutory forestry clearances, as and

when incurred, are treated as addition to the Mining Rights.

Other Intangible Assets

Software which is not an integral part of related hardware, is treated as intangible asset

and amortised over. a period of five years or its licence period, whichever is less.

i
Research and development

Development expenditure is capitalised only if it can be measured reliably and the related

asset and process are identifiable and controlled by the Company. Research and other

de*elopment expenditure is recognised as revenue expenditure as and when incurred.

3.2"2 Subsequent Cost
Subsequqnt expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.3 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of its assets on each Balance Sheet date for the

purpose of ascertaining impairment indicators if any, by considering assets of entire one

Plant as Cash Generating Unit (CGU). If any such indication exists, the assets' recoverable

amount is estimated, as higher of the Net Selling Price and the Value in Use. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount ofthe asset (or cash-

generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the

increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)

in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement

ofProfit and Loss.

3.4 Stripping Cost

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surface mine is recognised as

an asset if such cost provides a benefit in terms of improved access to ore in future periods

and following criteria are met:

It is probable that the future economic benefits (improved access to an ore body)

associated with the stripping activity will flow to the entity,

The entity can identify the component of an ore body for which access has been

improved, and

o T'he costs relating to the improved access to that component can be measured reliably.

penditure, which cannot be specifically identified to have been incurred to access

year mining plan for mines,

i.l:,t.'
which is based on project report.
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3.5 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifuing
,. assqt, whichtakes substantial period of time, are capitalised as apart of the cost of that

; asset, during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its

intended use.

The Company considers aperiod of twelve months or more as a substantial period of time.

Transaction costs in respect of long-term borrowings are amortised over the tenor of
respective loans using effective interest method. Other borrowing costs are recognised in

the Statement of Profit & Loss in the period in which these are incurred.

lnvcntories
Raw malerials, Stores & Spares and Finished/Semi-finished products (including process

scrap) are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value of the items of the respective

PlantsiUnits. In case of identif,red obsolete/ surplus/ non-moving items, necressary

provisioq is made and charged to revenue. The net realisable value of semi-finished special

products, which have realisable value at finished stage only, is estimated fbr the purpose

of comparison with cost.

Residue products and other scrap are valued at estimated net realisable value.

'Ihe basis of determining cost is:

Raw materials - Periodical weighted average cost

Minor raw materials - Moving weighted average cost

Stores & Spares - Moving weighted average cost

Materials in-transit - at cost

Finished/Semi-finished products - material cost plus appropriate share of labour, related

overheads and duties.

Government Grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company

will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

(iovemment grants are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis

over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs firr w-hich

the grants are intended to compensate. Where the Grant relates to an asset value, it is

recognised as deferred income, and amortised over the expected useful life of the asset.

Other grants are recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss coneurrent to the expenses

to which such grants relate/ are intended to cover.

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recordecl

gross at fair amounts and released to the income statement over the expected uselirl life

and pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

gn Currency Transactions

curency trrinsactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company

exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains

3.7

*r$d

resulting from the settlement and re-measurement of monetary items

}(l.s
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SAIem

denominated in foreign curency are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss at

period-end exchange rates.

'{

Th6 Company opted for accounting the exchange differences arising on reporting of long

term foreign currency monetary items in line with Companies (Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules 2009 relating to Accounting Standard-ll notified by Government of
India on 31st March , 2009 (as amended on 29tr December 2}ll), which will continue in
bccordance with Ind-AS 101 for all pre-existing long term foreign cuffency monetary

items as at 31$ March 2016. Accordingly, exchange difftrences relating to long term

monetary items, arising during the year, in so far as they relate to the acquisition of fixed

assets, are adjusted in the carrying amount of such assets.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost

(translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items

meiasured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair
value was determined.

3.9 Enaployee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions

into a'separate entity. Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are

recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions. Contributions towards Provident Funds are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the period when the contributions to the Funds are due.

Defined Benefit Plan
Defined benefit plans are the amount of the benefit that an employee will receive on

completion of services by reference to length of service, last drawn salary or direct costs

related to such benefits. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company.

The liability recognised for Defined Benefit Plans is the present value of the Defined

Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together

with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs.

Management estimates the present value of the DBO annually through valuations by an

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are

included in Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income of the year.

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the

asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected

in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive

income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the

statement of profit and 1oss.

Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus, ex-

[a, annual leave and sick leave which are accrued in the year in which the associated

are rendered by employees of the Company.

recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the

in exchange for the relatedamount of the benefits expected to be paid

.ffi,'e)*)
.-"' \:*--r- A
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SAIEM

Expenditure incurred on Voluntary Retirement Scheme is charged to the Statement of
'i \ Proflt and Loss immediately.
ii

3.10 RevenueRecognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Sale of goods

Sales are net of Goods and Services Tax (GST), rebates and price concessions. Sales are

recognised when it satisfy performance obligation by transferring promised gocds or

services (i.e. assets) to the customers and the customers obtain control of those goods or

servic:es. Where the contract prices are not finalised with government agencies, sales are

accr:unted for on provisional basis.

Marine expott sales are recognised on:

i) the issue of bill of lading, or

ii) negotiation of export bills upon expiry of laycan period, in cases where realisation

of material value without shipment is provided in the letters of credit of respective

contracts, whichever is earlier.

Export incentives under various schemes are recognised as income on certainty of
realisation.
'Ihe iron ore fines not readily useableisaleable are included in inventory and revenue is

recognised on disposal.

lnterest and dividend income

Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

Divielends are recognised at the time the right to receive is established.

3.11 Adjustment pertaining to Earlier Years

Income/Expenditure relating to prior period, which do not exceed 0.5% of Turnover in

each case, is treated as income/expenditure of current year.

3.12 Claims for Liquidated Damages and Price Escalation

Claims for licluidated damages are accounted for as and when these are considered

recoverable by the Company, on final settlement. These are adjuste,J to the capital cost

or recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, as the case may be on final settlement of
Liquidated damages.

Suppliers' and Contractors' claims for price escalation are accounled for to the extent

such elaims are accepted by the Company.

3.I3 Leases

ny as a Lessee

leases

leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and

incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair
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value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term

and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments under such leases are apportioned

. belween the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate
^(of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. Lease management fees,

legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalised.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end
' 
of lease term, capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated

useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operatiug leases:

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership

are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to

statement of profit and loss on straight-line basis except where scheduled increase in rent

compensate the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

Company as a Lessor

Finance leases

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits

incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified and accounted for as finance

lease"'Lease rental receipts are apportioned between the finance income and capital

repayment based on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue

in the period in which they are earned.

Operating leases

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are

included in the balance sheet based on their nature" Rental income is recognized on

straight-line basis over the lease term except where scheduled increase in rent

compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs.

3.14 Investment Properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Any gain or loss on disposal of
investment property is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the property and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.15 Non-current assets held for sale

Company classifies a non-cuffent asset as held for sale if its canying amount will be

recovered principally through a sale transaction. This condition is regarded as met only

whenthe asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale is highly
probable.

assets including discontinued operations, classified as

at the lower of the carrying amounts.and fair value less

separately in the financial statements. Once classified as

not subject to depreciation or amortisation.

held for sale are

costs to sell and

held for sale, theffi' i:-.: ..'otr - 
1l 
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Any profit or loss arising from the sale or re-measurement of discontinued operations is

presented as part of a single line item in statement of profit and loss.

r' 
t

3.16 Mihe Closure

Mine Closure Provision includes the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, the

removal of residual materials and the remediation of disturbed areas for mines. This

provision is based on all regulatory requirements and related estimated cost based on best

ivailable information. Mine closure costs are provided for in the accounting period when

the obligation arises based on the net present value of the estimated future costs of

restoration to be incurred during the life of the operation and post closure.

.,j

The initial close-down and restoration provision is capitalised within "Property, Plant and

Equipment". Subsequent movements in the close-down and restoration provisions for on-

goi"g operations, including those resulting from new disturbance related to expansions

or'other activities qualifuing for capitalisation, updated cost estimates, changes to the

estimated lives of operations, changes to the timing of closure activities and revisions to

discount rates are also capitalised within "Property, Plant and Equipment". These costs

are deprgciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate. Any changes in closure

provisions relating to closed operations are charged /credited to the Statement of Profit

and Loss. The amortisation or t'unwinding" of the discount applied in establishing the

provisions is charged as Finance Cost.

3.17 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A Provision is recognised when the Company has present obligation as a result of a past

event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are discounted

to their present value, where the time value of money is material.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to

be recovered from athird pary, the receivable is recognised as a separate asset if it is

virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable

can be measured reliably.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of

which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occulrence of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present

obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not possible that

an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the

obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot be made. The

Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to Financial

Statements.

In cases where the possible outflow of economic resourees as a result of present

obligation is considered improbable or remote, no Provision is recognised or djsclosure

is made"

tingent Assets

tingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise

possibility of an inflow of economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognised

6,6.B
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are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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3.18 Income Taxes

. Tar expense recognised in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax

. and current tax not recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCf or directly in

equity.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
'in 

aceordance u4th the Indian Income-tax Act. Cunent income tax relating to items

recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in OCI or in equity.

Deferred incorne taxes are calculated using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities

are geneially recognised in fulI for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, unused tax

credits (MAT Credit entitlement) or deductible temporary difference will be utilised

against future taxable income. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each

reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Defened tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply

in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax

relatirrg to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in

OCI or in equity.

3"19 Cas[ and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with

other short-term highly liquid investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are

readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

3.20 Equity and Reserves

Share Capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Securities

premium includes any premium received on issue of Share Capital.

Components of other equlty include the following:

o Re-measurement of defined benefit liability comprises the actuarial gain or loss

from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and return on plan assets.

. Bond Redemption Reserve.

o Other transactions recorded directly in Other Comprehensive Income.

o Retained eamings include all cun"ent and prior period retained profits

3.21 Financiallnsiruments

Reeognition, initial measurement and de-recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised and are measured initially at fair

value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those financial assets which are classified

Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) at inception"

ial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are

A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged,

#-$q

3\ru/,"*I+r,\SZ-l-.$

,l

f]

or explres.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of {inancial assets

Foq the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the

following cate gories upon initial reco gnition :

. amortised cost

' financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
. financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCD

Atrl financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at

least at each reporting date.

..j

Amortisbd cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the

following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold

financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

thai are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this

category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL include flnancial assets that are either do not meet the criteria

for amortised cost classification or that are equity instruments held for trading or that

meet certain conditions and are designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All
derivative financial instruments also fall into this category. Assets in this category are

measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of
financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions

or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Financial assets at FVOCI
FVOCI financial assets are either debt instruments that are managed under hold to collect

and sell business model or are non-trading equity instruments that are irrevocable

designated to this category at inception.

FVOCI financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognized in

other comprehensive income, except for interest and dividend income, impairment losses

and foreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are recognizedin statement

ofprofit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at arn^ortized cost using the effective

interest method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL,

are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss.

7v
+-/<t&
(}.
.4-

r)..

rivative financial instruments are accounted'for at FVTPI.

{*"."'.,
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Embedded Derivatives
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives

relhtod to those of the host contracts and the contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
'for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive"

Trade Receivables

The Company applies approach as specified in.Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from

initial recognition qf receivables.

Other Einancial Assets

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the

Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since

initial_recognition.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be

enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the counterparty.

3.22 Significant Judgements, Assumptions, and Estimations in applying Accounting

Policies

3"22.1 Classification of Leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of
the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment

of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at

end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such

option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present value

of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature

ofthe leased asset.

3.22.2 Close-down and Restoration Obligations
Close-down and restoration costs are normal consequence of mining or production, and

majority of close-down and restoration expenditure are incurred in the years following

the closure of mine, although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain, the Company

estimate their costs using current restoration techniques.

ition of Deferred Tax Assets

t to which defened tax assets can be recognized is based on.an assessment of
ility of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax
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assets can be utilized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the

impact of any legal or economic limits.
t\ 

{

3122"4 Int'entories
The Company estimates the cost of inventories taking into account the most reliable

evidence, such as cost of materials and overheads considered attributable to the

production of such inventories including actual cost of production, etc. Management also

estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable

evidence available at eachreporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may

be affected by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future

selling pqces. :

3.22.5 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which

include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions conceming future

developments in discount rates, medical cost trends, anticipation of future salary

increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to

measure,its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may

have a material impact on the resulting calculations.

3"22"6 Fair Value Measurements

The Company applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial

instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This

involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with the market participants to

price'the instrument. The Company's assumptions are based on observable data as far as

possible, otherwise on the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary

from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the

reporting date.

3.22"7 Provisions and Contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made

in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37, 'Provisions, Contingent

Liabilities and Contingent Assets'. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent

events is applied best judgement by management regarding the probability of exposure

to potential loss.

3.22.8 Mine Closure and Restoration Obligations

Environmental liabilities and Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO): Estimation of
environmental liabilities and ARO require interpretation of scientific and legal data, in

addition to assumptions about probability and future costs.

3.22.g Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets (tangihle and intangible)

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at

each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets" Uncertainties in these

estimates relate to actual normal wear and tear that may change the utility of plant and

uiprnent.
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem
(All amounts in { Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note forming..part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Deferred taxes arising from temporary differences and unused tax losses for the period cnded 31st NIarch,2022 are summarized as follows:

As at 31st

March,2022
As at 31st

March,2021

5: CAPITA t. W()RK-IN-PROGRESS

Plant & lV{achiner-l

l.ess: Irrovisions

7: TRADE RECEIVABLES.
!

NON CTIRRENT

[-f nsecuretl. cr.rnsidered good

Linseeured. considered doubtful

Allowarrce t"crr' 
-bad 

and doubtful receivables

8: LOANS NON-CIIRRENT

Cnnsidered good - Unsecured

L,oan to others

9: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT

Securi4, deposits

Claims recoverable

Fixed deposits rvith maturitl'period more than 12 months

Less: Allowance for doubtful non-current assets

10 : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

Diflerence 'between book and tax depreciation

Fair value adjustment through OCI

Retirement Benetits

Others - Provisions tbr Bad Debts

Deferred tax (assets) /liabilities (net)

2. 15

2. l5

( r.95 (1 '7)

0.89

l "70

2.15

6.7 t

0.90

6"76

6.7 t

6.7 t

7.66

6"76

0.90

0.07 0.07

0.07 0.41

0.69

0.25

069
{1.25

5 "55

0.94

0.24

6.49

0.24

0.70 6.25

(r .95)

1.89

{1"72)

1{O
0.24

t.69

(0.06 0.87

Recognized in

profit or loss

Recognized in

Other

comprehensive

income

x effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

Difference betrveen book and tax depreciation

ax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

- Provisicns 1'or Bad Debts

lAv
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem
(All amounts in { Crores, unless othenoise stated)

Note forming,part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
s'*At
IIINIIIIII

As at 3Lst

March,2022
As at 31st

March,2021

ll: CI,RR[]NT'IAX ASSETS / LIABILITIES (NET)

.,\dvance Income i ar (net of allor'vance)

12: OTHER ASSETS - NON CURRENT

A.dvances to eontractors & suppliers

Less : Alk-rwance ibr doubtful other assets

13: INVENTORIES

Stores & spares

Produetir.rn

Fuel Storcs

Add: Irl-transit

Less: Allowance for non moving/obsolete items

Raw material

Ralv mater:ials

Add: Intransit

Less: .Allorvance for unusable materials

Finished 1 Semi-finished products

Finished Goods

Work in Progress

14: TRADE RECEIVABLES - CURRENT*

Considered good-l Insecured

Allorvance ior bad and doubtful receivables

* Receivables due from directors and offlcers ofthe Companl'

nil (provious,vear nil)

l5 (i): CIASH AND CASH EQUEVALENTS

Current accoi.lnts

Term Deposits rvith original maturir,v- upto 3 months

Term Deposris as per court orders uith origrnal manrrity upto 3 monihs

7 .71

0.86

8.5'1

2.t5

7.57

0.44

8.01

4.78

2.15 0.78

3.06

0.22

6.06

a.22

2.84 5.84

5 "79

14.41

18.06

6.,+4

12.18

23.51

8.57

2"78

8.01

1.57

14.41 25.40

6.78

14..11 32.1 8

14.30

3.76

r 7.00

6.51

23.51

48"2"7

23.21

26._66

38.26 62.13

34.-02 29.-74

34.02 29.70

71"78 ,19.87

15 (ii):OTHER BANK BALANCES

Fixed deposits with maturi -v tbr more than 3 months but less

J@og,[s
,* t"'t. S,,\

71.78 49.87

66.45 65.95

66.45 65.95

F/
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, S"I"-
(All amounts in 7 Crores, unless otherwise staled)

Notetorming qart of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March2O22
'i.

in the

As at 3lst
March,2022

As at 31st

March,202L

I6: OTHER FINANCIAL ASStrTS - CURRENT

Claims recoverable

Receivables freim employees

l7: 0THER L'[IRRENT ASSETS

Advanees to contraetors & suppliers

0,35

0.07 0.21

o.42 o.2t

2.06 0.22

2.06 0.22

As at 31st

March,2022
"As at 3lst

March, 2021

l8: EQt-iITY SIIARE CAPITAL
Authorised capital

Ecluiqv shares of{ 10 each

(1.00,000 equity shares of{10 each)

Issued and subscribed capital & fully paid-up

(1.00.000 equity shares of {10 each f'ully paid up)

0.10 0. r0

0. l0 0. 10

Reconciliation ofequitv shares at the end ofthe

Particulars

Equity shares with voting rights

Baiance at the beginning ofthe year

Shares convefied to shares with voting ri.ehts during the year

Shares bought back during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Equitv shares without voting rights

Balance at the beginning ofthe year

Shares Issued during the year

Balance at the end ofthe vear

As at 3lst
March,2022

As at 31st

March,2021

NumLrers Amount Numtrers Amount

1 00000 010 100000 0. 10

Total equity shares outstanding at the end ofthe year r00000 0.10 100000 0.10

Details of the shareholders more than 57o ofthe shares

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares

held

7o of Holding No. ofShares

held

7o of Holding

Steel Authoritv of India Limited 99988 99.988 99988 99.988



SAIL REFR.ACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SaI",n
(All amounts in ? Crures, unless otherwise stated)

Note forming,part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March2022

,

As at 31st

March,2022
As at 31st

March,2021

19:0THER EQIJITY

Reserves & Surplus

Capital Reserve

Operring balarrce

Additions during the year

l.ess: Lttilisaticn during the y'ear

General Reserve

Opening balanee

Additions during the year

l.ess: Utilisation during the 1'ear

Retained Earnings

Opening balance

Add: Net profit I loss (-) for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income/loss (-)

Less: Equitl'dividend

Less:'Iransf'er to General Resen e

Total other equity

20: TRADE PAYABLES - NON CT]RRENT

Amount pa1'abte ro contractors/suppliersiothers

21: OTHER FINANCIIAL I,I:\BI[,ITIES - NON CITRRENT

Employees related dues

Other payables

22: PROVISIONS - NON CURRENT

Provision fbr gratuitl'

Provision for accrued leave liability
Provision lor mines closure

Other provisions

43.-70

43.70

15.81

t04.17

,8.74

11 70

I1.8:l

91.77

13.84

1.97

12.65

1.19

91.77

t9.66

0.31

5.3 0

1.97

82"23

I 1.88

(i.15)

r.l9

163.98 149.31

3.34 4.10
3"34 4.10

7.42

27.09

4.J4

68.67

34.51 73.01

0.56

4"23

0.03

I 1.05

3.51

0"05

0.03

4.27

11.87 7.86
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, S"I.-
(All amounts in { Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2422

As at 31st

March,2021

NON CI-IRRENT PRO\/ISIONS

Opening Balance

Add : Provision during the year

L.ess: Amount paid i utilised during the year

Less: Provision rvritien back during the year

Accrued-Learq LLabil ity
Opening Balance

Add : Provision during the year

Less: Amount paid / i,rtilised during the year

L.ess: Provision written back during the year

Mines closure

Opening Balance

Adri : Provision during the year

l,ess: Amourrt utilised during the year

Less: Provision rvritten back during the year

othsrr
ing Balance

Add : Provision during the year

Less: Amount utilised during the year

Less: Provision rvritten back during the year

23: TRADE PAYABLES - CLTRRENT

Amount pa1'able to contractors/suppliers/others

2.I: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT

Security deposits

Other payables

25: OTHER LIABILITIES - CURRENT

Other Payables

26: PROVISIONS - CURRENT

Other provisions

ing Balance

Add . Provision during the 
"v-'ear

Less: Amount utilised during the year

I-ess: Provision rvritten back during the vear

NT TAX LTABILITIES NET)

during the year

paid during the year

r'vritten back during the ,v-ear

2.60

1.9 I

1.00

'."t:i,

3.51

0.05

3.00



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED' Sarem

(All amounts in ? Croresn unless otherwise stateil)

Note forming part of'{inaneial Statements for the year ended 31st March2022
r,

rsh
IIIIITIIIII

Year ended

3lst March,2022
Year ended

31st March,2021

28: REVENLlE FR.O[,[ 0PERI,TIONS

Sale of pr.oducts

Domestic

Sub,Iotal ( a )

Other ()perating Revenues

S ocral an'renrtres-recoveries

Sundnes

SubTotal (b)

Total ( a+b )

29. OTHER INCO]\IE

lnterest income

Bank deposits

Sub Total (a)

Other Non-operating income

Allolvnaces no longer required rvritten back

Sundrl debtors

Others

Others

SubTotal (b)

Total ( a+b )

30 : COST OF NIATERIALS CONSUIIED

Raw Material - QMAri I DBM / SEA WATER/ FM

31: CHANGf,S IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,

WORK I\ PROGRESS A\D B}-.PRODTiCTS

Opening stock

Finished Goods

Work in Progress

Iron ore fines (sub-grade)

Less : Closing stock

F'inished Goods

Work in Progress

lron ore fines (sub-grade)

Net Accretion(-)/Depletiorr to stock

0.0s

2.99

I 98.3 7

l.3 l

1,17 gt

198.3 7 147.91

0,08

003
007

0.11 007

198.48 147.98

s30 5.0 r

5.10 5.01

3.04

0.88

1.i I

0. 15

17.00

6 5l
28.08

3.,49

3.92 t.46

o ,', 6"17

113.66 77.12

l13.66 11 t)

2:i"51

18.06

i1.57

23.5 1

14.30

3 "-76

17.00

6.51

5.45 805

3. cuo-N
f:./4

g

a]i1tirr-*
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SAIL REFITACTORY CON{PANY LIMITED, satem

( lll fittltltutts in ? Crores. unless othen+'ise stated)

"iou: forming parl o{ !inancial Statcments for the }ear ended 3lst NIarch 2022

Year ended

31st March,2022

Year ended

31st March, 2021

32: EMPI-OYEE BENEI,'ITS EXPENSE

Salarre: & wages

l-eave encashment

Company's contrihution ir: provident & other funds
'Iravel concession

Welfare expenses

Cratuity

33: FINANCE COST'S

Others

34: OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of stores & spares

Consumption

I-ess: Finished products inlemally consumed as stores and spares

Less: Departmentally manufactured stores

Repairs & maintenance

Buildings

Plant & Machinery

Others

Handling expenses

Raw material

Remuneration to Auditnrs

Audit fees

'fax audit fees

For other services

Out ofpocket expenses

Allowances

Stores. spares and sundrie:

Power and Fuel

Freight outward

lnoyatty and cess

I Inrurun..
I

jLaw charees

I 
Portug". telegram & telephone

I Printing & stationery

lRates & Iaxes
l

I 
Securiry expenses

lTravelling expenses

lTraining expenses

Expenditure on co

Foreign exchangi

Cost audit feeridl{.

Write-offs i. ":'

Handling exp-qnser

N{iscellaneoilsl:t 
l

il-:.

ibility

ioosl ,;
I 

-!-

/! *

5

0

47

t2

13.04

0.40

0.74

0.99

0.58

4.39

1.20

12.00

0.39

0.82

0.39

0.87

0.64

15.75 15.11

0.01 0"01

0.01 0.01

5.35

0.39

1.32

a"a2

7.98

8.39

6.54

0.18

0.18

0.01

0.07

0.02

0.07

2.19

0.09

0.24

0 "47

0. 10

0.01

0.09

1.40

9. 1i

1.19

0.38

1 tl

0.02

0.05

6.43

410

0.18

0" l8

0.02

0.07

0. 12

0.03

2"2s

0"03

0.19

0.49

0.08

0"01

1"06

16.65

0.19

0.r1

0.09

0.19

0.10

0.09

0.0 r

0.01

0.01

0.0 i

44.24 36.71w



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SAICM

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3l'tMarch 2022

:':. H,stiqrateel amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided tbr (net of'advanees)

are:

I As at 31't Ularch,2022
Particulars

Other Commitments

36 The amount due to Micro and Smail Enterprises as definecl in the The Micro, Small and Medium

llnterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have heen

identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to

Miero and Small Enterprises as at 31st March, 2022are as under:

c

No. Description As at 31st

Nfl[arch,2022

As at 3L't

March,2021

I The principal amount remaining unpaid

suppliers as at the end of the Year.

to NIL NII,

It" The amount of interest accrued during the Year

and remaining unpaid at the end of the Year..

lt. The amount of further interest remaining due and

payable even in the succeeding Year, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually

paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under

section 23.

v. The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

supplier as at the end of the Year.

For the Year ended

31st March,
2022

3l'tMarch,
2A2l

v. The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16,

along with the amount of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day during the Year.

/I. The amount of interest due and payable for the

period of delay in making payment (which have

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

Year) but without adding the interest specified

under this Act.

37. Balances of some of the Trade Receivables, Other Assets, Trade and Other Payables are subject

to confirmations/reconciliations and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are

qarried out on on-going basis. Provisions, wherever considered necessary, have been made"

r, Management does not expect to have any material financial impact of such pending

As at 31't March,2027

ions/reconciliations.

Canitai Comrnitments Nil 0.08

33.39 23.06

M
tr
qq/

dl \

t"\*
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,\AtL REFRACTORY COMP.4|{Y LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3l'tMarch 2022

;ll. As per lhe Deparlment of Public Enterprises (DPE) guideline, the Company is required to

contrihure up to 30% of Saiary (Basic Pay + Deamess Allowance) in respect of executive

empioyees as supernnnuation benet-rts, which may include Contributor.rr Provident Fund,

Ciratuity" Pension and Post-Superannuation Benefits. Accordingl3z the Cornpany has made

provision tbr pension beneht for executive employees (i0,9% of Salary w.e.f. 1st January,2012.

Furth.er" pension benetit for non-executive employees haC been provided @,6% of Salary r,v.e.f.

lst January,2012.

Fension Scheme was approved in the Meeting of the Board of Directors held on 24th

September. 2018. In the 44th Board Meeting, it was decided that since there was no mention

about Pension Scheme in the Wage Agreement entered into with the Union for non-executive,

the provision made towarcis Pension Scheme for non-executive is to tre reversed during

2021-22. Accordingly the amount of provision of Rs.2.99 crore made towards Pension Scheme

of Non-e5ecutive has been reversed during the year 202I-22.

The cumulative provision/liability tow'ards pension beneht for executive employees, arnounting

to {1.32 crore({0.13 crore during the year) has been charged to 'Employee Benefits Expense'"

39" I.he Company internally reviews the camying amount of its f,rxed assets on each balance sheet

date feir the purpose of asceftaining impairment, if any, by considering assets of entire one plant

as Cash Generating Unit (CGU). If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is

estimated, as higher of the net selling price and the value in use. An impairment loss is

recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The net

selling price of the CGU is determined once in every three years.

On such review as on 31't March, 2022, no provision is required to be made during the year.

40.As per Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013, the Company is required to spend, in every

financial year, at least 2Yo of the average net profits of the Company made during the three

immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its Corporate Social Responsibility

(CSR) Policy, which works out to {0.45crore for the year 2021-22"

SRC)L has spent an amount of t0.l3crore on CSR activities during the Financial Year 2021-22

under the follor,r'ing heads:

Women Empowerment

Total

Particulars {Crore

Education 0.00

0.00

Sanitation 0.03

KqHN Others 0.10

l/r-:f .^ . -. -.,?'t
'*T/'= ;; : :'= \,=a'

: i q ,.-- .a r.r: -. j {j

n i Cr;:'[; ]" ;; .. ; i.j.

,li;M,iri
\;;'o:'lt"; 

':-{Y
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SAICM

Note forming part of l'inancial Statements for the year ended 3l'Nlarch2022

, SRCI has placed the Work Order in respect of fbllowing CSR projects amounting to Rs.0.34

. cror6 but work has not been completed. However, the liability has been created in the books of
accounts during the year 2021-22.

Particulars {Crore

Education 0.1 1

Women Empowerment 0.0s

Sanitation 0.18

'Total 0.34

As per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the unspent amount pertaining

to ongoing projects shall be transferred to "Unspent CSR Account" within 30 days from the end

of the Financial year. Accordingly, SRCL opened a Current Account namely "SRCL Unspent

CSR Account" with State Bank of India and transferred {0.34 crore to such 'SRCL Unspent

CSR Account' within 30 days from the end of the financial year 2021-22"

41. Information on leases as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 17 on Leases:

Mining land

The'Company has leasehold lands for mining by virtue of its rights under the lease

agreement after considering the n*fileconomic compulsion for renewal.

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES

A2rGeneral Description of Defined Benefit Schemes:

Gratuity : Payable to Executives on separation (@15 dayspay (Basic

plus DA) last drawn for each completed year of service to

eligible employees who render continuous service of 5

years or more. For Non-executives, the graluity is payable

on separation @15 days pay (tsasic plus DA) last drawn

for each completed year of ser',ice to eligible employees

who render continuous service of 5 years or more. Gratuity

shall be calculated (@ one month pay (Basic plus DA) last

drawn for each completed year of service beyond 30 years

for Non-executives.The maximum amount of gratuity of

t20 lakhs for both executives & non-executives has been

considered for actuarial valuation.



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SAICM

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3lWlzrch2022

1i'- Leave Encashment : Payable on superannuation to eiigible Execulive

employees who have accumulated earned and lialf pay

leave, subiect to maximum lirnit of 300 days comhined for

earned leave and half pay leave. F'or Non

Executiveemployeestoa maximum limit of 200 days o{'

eamed ieave. Encashment of accutnulated earned leave is

also aiiowed up to 30 days once in a financial year"

Provident Fund : 12o/o of Basic Pay Plus l)earness Allowance, contributed to

Employees Provident F'und Organization, Salem by the

compan"v.

43. Disclosures required under Ind AS 19 on oBmployee Benefits', in respect of defined benefit

obligations are :

(a) Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations :

(tcrore)

st.

No.
Particulars Gratuity

Leave

Encashment

D Present Value of projected benefit

obligations, as at the beginning of the

year.
9.77 1.32

ii) Service Cost 0.28 0.21

iii) Interest Cost 0.62 0"09

iv) Actuarial Gains(-) / Losses(+) -0.32 -0.04

v) Past Service Cost

vi) Benehts Paid 2"42 0.12

vii) Present Value of projected benefit

obligations as at the end of the year.

(i+ii+iii+iv-v-vi)
8.33 1.46

(b) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations

The Company has funded the gratuity liability through a separate Gratuity Fund. The fair value

e plan assets is mainly based on the information given by the insurance companies

whom the investments have been made by the Fund.

iliation of fair value of assets of the Gratuity Fund and defined benefit gratuity

is as under:
i4 t ;ff"sd-rn h,
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SUICM

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3l'March 2022

ta
,i

i

The reconciliation of fair value of assets of the Leave Encashment Fund and defined

benefit Leave Encashment obligations is as under:

{ crore

Sl.No Particulars 202r-22 2020-21

i) Fair Value of plan assets as at the beginning of the

year

6.27 7.48

r1) Expected retum on Plan assets 0.45 0.51

iii) Actual Company' s contribution 3.00 1.00

i,r) Interest Income/Actuarial Gain/Loss 0.09 -0.02

v) Benefits payments 2.02 2.74

vi) Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 7.78 6.26

vii) Present value of defined benef,rt obligation 8"33 9"77

viii) Net liability recognised in the Balance sheet (vii)-(vi) -0.55 -3.5 1

Sl.No Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

i) Fair Value of plan assets as at the beginning of the

year

r.27 1.18

ii) Expected return on Plan assets 0.09 0.08

iii) Actual Company' s contribution 0.00 0.11

iv) Interest Income/Actuarial Gain/Loss -0"01 0.00

v) Benefits payments 0"12 0.10

vi) Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 1.23 1.27

vii) Present value of defined benefit obligation 1"46 t.32

viii) Net liability recognised in the Balance sheet (vii)-(vi) -0.23 -0.05

ffi
rffi:il
\t*--->d*z/



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

,{cte fhrming part of Financial Staternents for the year eirded 31stMarch 2022

(e\ Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss t 
" 
rht#lJ;,

(d) Effect of 0.5 percentage point change in the Discount rate on Employees' Benefit
schemes

(e) Effect of 0.5 percentage point change in the salary escalation rate on Employees'
Benelit schemes

sl"

No.
Particulars Gratuity

Leave
Errcashment

i) Sen ice Cost 0.28 a.2l
ii) interest Cost 0.18 0.00

iii) Actuarial Gains
(-)/Losses

-0.32 -0.03

lv) Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00

r,) Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.00

vi) Total (i+ii+iii+iv-v) 0.14 0.18

vii) Employees' Benefits Expenses :

a) Chareed to Profit & Loss Account 0.4s 0.18

b) Charged to Expenditure During

. Construction

c) Charged to OCI
-0.41

d) Charged to Profit & Loss Account-

Other Expenses

viii) Actual Return on Plan Assets excluding

interest income
0.09 0.00

crore

st.
No

Particulars
0.5 percentage

point decrease in
discount rate

0.5 percentage point
increase in discount

rate
i) Gratuity 8.s0 8.16

ii) Leave 1.s0 t.43

crore

sl.
No

Particulars
0.Spercentage point
decrease in discount

rate

0.5 percentage point
increase in discount

rate
i) Gratuity 8.17 8.50

ii) [,eave t"43 t.49

f) Investments of Gratuity Trust I Leave Encashment Fund

ffi,
f 4'{- 6r .. . *-
<;I.,5t.; ''i'
ct I {-,"-.'1., r-' .1"

-."- i /:-r' l,^i:.. ii.
-*J, i --r lLlJ'.'/.

Particulars 7o of Investment

As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, SUICM

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3l'tMarch 2022

. G\ Actuarial assumPtions

;tt

44. Disclosure of Material Transactions with Related Parties :-

Sales to SAIL Units

Si. No. Descriotion As at 31't March,22 As at 31st March,2l
i) Discount Rate

(per annum)

7.10% 6.80%

ii) Mortaiity rate rALM 20r2-20t4
Ultimate

rALM (20t2-14)

Ultimate

iii)

!

Retirement Age

- Executives

- Non Executives

58 Year

60 Year

58 Year

60 Year

iv) Salary Escalation Executives : 6.25Yo p.a.

Non-Executiv es :6.25%;o

p.a.

Executives : 6.25a/o p "a"

Non- Execut iv e s : 6 .2 5o/o

p.a.

(h) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligations
Crore

Period

As at 31st March2022

Gratuity
Leave

Encashment

Upto 1 year 1.77 0.19

Betweenlto2years l.J_) 0"24

Between2to3years I .13 0.29

Between3to4years t.25 0.17

Between4to5years 1.41 0.27

Between 5 to 10 years 3.83 0.72

More than 10 years 0.87 0.23

Total Undiscounted Payments related to Past Service 1 1.s9 2.tt
Less: Discount for Interest 3.26 0.65

Proiected Benefit Oblieation 8.33 1.46

Party Name

BHILAI STEEL PLANT

BOI'ARO STtrEL PLANT

DURGAPUR STEEL PLANT

IISCO STEEL PLANT 5t44"62t

ROURKELA STEEL PLANT t125.511

AiL REFRACTORY UNIT (BHILAD

REFRACTORY LINIT (RANCHD

4n.294

-ofnn 
Pof-Fr

o r..',Ll
rSE ilffM
.(4
^S-----*--'/ fu * oi:,.

in Crores)

t from SAIL Units- <1.56 Crores

lk/
ci l:
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3l'tMareh2022

45. Dis,closures of provisions required by Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)37 'Provisions,
Coiitingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Brief Description :

Mines afforestation

costs

Mines closure costs

Overburden

backlog removal costs

Payable on renewal (including deemed renewal)/forest

clearance of mining leases to Government authorities,

towards afforestation cost at mines for use of forest

land for mining purposes.

Estimated liability towards closure of mines, to be

incurred at the time of cessation of mining activities.

To be incurred towards removal of overburden backlog

at mines over the future years.

(tcrore)
Movement of provisions Mines

affore-
station
costs

Mines
closure

costs

Over
burden
removal

costs

Total

Balance as at l't April,2}2l 0.03 0.00 0.03

Additions during the Year 6.78 6"78

Amounts utilised during the Year

Unused amount reversed during the Year

Balance as at 3l't March,2022 0.03 6.78 6"8l

46. Contingent Liabilities:-

(tcrore)

Particulars
As at 31st March

2022

As at 31st March

2021

Disputed Tax matters 9.02 8.96

Bank Guarantee furnished 1 1.30 10.36

Total 20.32 19.32

-Governmentof Tamil Nadu has raised DemandNotice towards surface rent compensation for

ffi. lease hold lands for the period 1943 to 2010 for an amounl of Rs.458 Crores during

on SRCL based on GO No.460 dt 14.06.98 which was issued under Tamil Nadu

Act 1994. Subsequently the Govemment of Tamil Nadu has revised the demand too
p

[+

'r'r'jl- AN,'
I -':-i.:, *

osir-lf,elrctl-"i: 
"1?drqt

ffir by including the interest portion on08"02.2017.



sA; REFxacroRy coMpANy LIMITED, satem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3lsWl*rch2022

Sfi.CL has hled a writ petition r.r,ith Maciras High Court stating thai surface rent compensation

was not payable lbr Govemment Poromboke lands and the demand notice is not issued under

the provisions of l\4ineral Concession Rules 1960 and hence not sustainable and obtained

intei'im stay on the above during April2017 .

47"'i'he Mining operations in SRCL have been stopped fiom January 2A17 for lry'ant of

'L-,nvirr:nment 
Cleatance from Ministr,v of Environment and Forest ancl Climate Change

(NfgllF). SRCL has submitted application for Environment Cllearance to MoEF during

January 2017.

MoEF has directed SRCL to obtain No Objection Certificate fiom Mines & Geology

Department in respect of settlement of compensation amount payabte against operation of

mining activities, in the absence of Environment Clearance, in terrns of provisi<tn under

secrion 21(5) of the MMDR Act 1957 as directed by the Hon'ble Supreme Clourt in their

judgment dated 2"d August ,2017 for similar cases.

The State Govemment has issued three nos. of Memo vide no.ROC No"45l2018iM-5iMines-

A, ROC No.45l2018/M-6iMines-A and ROC No.45l2018/M-7lMines-A all dated 04.03"2020

directing SRCL to deposit Rs.49,07,14,2431- towards compensation ivith respect to

Environment Clearance for the period from 01.04.2000 to 31.03"2017. I-,iability to the tune of

Rs. 15.66 Crores for the parlial period from 1 5.01 .2016 to I 0.01 "2017 was made in the SRCll,

Accounts during the year 2018-19 as per demand received from the State Govemment. The

balance amount of liability amounting to Rs.33.41 Crores has been made in the accounts

during the year 2019-20 and included under non-current liability.

Based on the Minutes of Meeting held on 02J22021 with Additional Chief Secretary,

Industries, Golt. of Tamil Nadu. and other Officials and subseqllent approval by the SRCL

Board vide Circular Resolution No.CIR -47 01 dtd.31 "12.2021, the amount of Rs.36 .77 crore

have been paid to Golt. of Tamil Nadu during 202I-22 towards I00oZ compensation with

pect to Environment Clearance in respect of Red Hill Mines"

ffi,s/.;
ct \ra\ ?;
\*\



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3lstManch 2022

48" Firfrncial Risk Management

i) Financial instruments by category (tcrore)

Risk Management

The Company is exposed to various risk in relation to financial asset and liabilities" T'he main

types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management is

coordinated at its headquarters, in close cooperation with the board of directors, and focuses on

actively securing the Company's short to medium-term cash flows by minimising the exposure t<r

.u-olatile financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting

returns. The Company does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes

nor does it',vrite options. The most significant financial risks to which the Clompany is exposed

are described below.

C'redit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counteryafty fails to discharge an cibligation to the Company. 'fhe

Company is less exposecl to credit risk for various financial instruments. for example amount

iaablesfrom customers other than SAIL Plants, placing term deposits, etc. The Company's

exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounl of fcrllowing types hnancial

ii)

A)

Particulars

As at 31st March,2A22 As at 31st March"2021

F'VTPL FVOCI
Amortised

cost
FVTPL FVOCI

Amortised
cost

Financial assets .

Investmdnts

Equity instruments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank Balances

Loans

Derivative financial assets

Other rdceivables

34.02

71.78

66.4s

0.07

1.12

:o.oo
4q "87

65.95

0.07

6.46

Total L73.44 152.95

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade payable

Derivative Liability
Other payables

0.03

1.16

s:.a7

o.oz

4.69

79"64

Total 61.06 84.40

sets.',

.
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SA I L R E F- R,4CTO R7' COX,IPANY LIMITED, Salent

Note fornring p:rrt of Financial Statements for the year ended 3l'tMarch 2022

' -(lnsh anrl cash equivalents

- T raJr rccei.,'abies

-Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

-I.he 
Company continuously monitors defaults ol customers and other counterparties, identified

either individually or by the Company, and incorporates this information into its ereelit risk

controls. The Company's policv is to deal only with crerlitwoithy counterparties.

a) Credit risk rnanagement

Cash and cash equivalent

Credit risk related to cash and cash ecluivalents is negligible as deposits are made in highly

rated Public Sectorbanks only.

I)erivative fi nancial instruments

SRCL does not have anv Derivative financial instruments.

Trade receivahles

Credit risk related to trade receivables are very less as most of sales are made to SAIL plants

only. There is no credit sale to private parties.

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost include advances to employees and others.

Credit risk related to these other frnancial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability

of such amounts continuously, while at the same time intemal control system is in place to

ensure the amounts are within defined limits.

b) Expected credit losses

4;ffi,Fpany provides expected credit losses based on the following

"e'/*-*T"i,r./32*., \'.1pl tl.,f:1..' .i. 1:,._
';J rl. ,:-,1,, 
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SAIL liflp RACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forrning part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3ls'March 2022

' Trade receivables

'fhe Llompany recognizes lit-etinre expected credit losses on trade receivabies using a simplified

apprerach and uses historical information to arrive at loss percentage relerrant to each category of

trade receivables:

(Tcrore)

" Ageing
(As at 31st March,2022)

0-3

months

3-12

months

t2-24
months

24-36

months

rnare than
36 months

Total

Gross carrying amount

Expected loss rate

Expected credit loss provision

31.48 2.54 1.15

t00%

1.15

0.10

r00%

0.10

5.46

lLl1atit

5.56

4Q.73

6.7 r

Carrying amount of trade
receivables (Net of
impairrirent)

31.48 2.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 34.02

({crore)

Ageing
(As at 31st March,z0zl)

0-3

months

3-12

months

t2-24
months

24-36

months

more than

-36 months
'Iotal

Grosi carrying amount

Expected loss rate

Expected credit loss provision

t4.52 15.19 0.75 0.14 6"76

10070

6.76

37 "36

6.16

Carrying amount of trade
receivables (Net of
impairment)

t4.s2 15.19 0.75 0.t4 0.00 30.60

rstonReconciliation of Expected credit loss crore

Particulars
Unlisted equify

securities

As at 31st March,2)2l

Changes in provision (-)

As at 31st March,2022

6.76

0"0s

6.71

Other financial assets measured at amortued cost

Company provides for expected credit losses on "loans advances and other than trade

receivables" by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses.

Since this category includes loans and receivables of varied natures and purpose, there is no trend

that the company can draws to apply consistently to entire population For such financial assets,

Company's policy is to provides for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition

ides for lifetime expected credit losses upon significant increase in credit risk. The

does not" have any expected loss based impairment recognized on such assets

their low credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions are disclosed under each

(<it
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED,'Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 3l'tMarch 2022

B) Liquidity risk
;(: Prudbnt liquidity risk management implies maintaining suffrcient cash to meet obligations when

due.Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and

cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the

liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company's triquidity

management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level

of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal

and extemql regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The'tables below analyse the company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity companying

based.on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities and the amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12

months eqpral their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

(Tcrore)

Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities as at

Less than
1 year

l-2 year 2-3 year
More than

3 years
Total

3lst March,2022

Non-derivatives

Security Deposit 1..22 I.JJ 0.16 1.38 4.09

Trade payable 3.82 0.19 3.15 7.16

Other payables 1 8.14 2.2t 2.17 27 "29 49.8r

Total 23.18 3.54 )<) 31.82 61.06

(Tcrore)

Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities as at

Less than
1 year

l-2year 2-3 year
More than

3 years
Total

31st March,202l

Non-derivatives

Security Deposit r.t2 0.45 0.r2 1.36 3.05

Trade payable 0.s9 0.2t 0.27 3.62 4.69

Other payables 5.s 1 22"t8 2.t4 46.83 76.66

Total 7.22 22.84 2"53 51.81 84.40

Information:

's operations mainly relate to One Primary Segment and there are no Secondan
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SAIL ltEF'RACTORY COX,IPANY LIMITED, Sulem

Note fonning part of Financial Statements for the vear ended 31'tNlarch 2022

5(1" {'apilal }lanagemcnt

Thc r.:omlrany's capital management objectives are

-to ensur:e the company's ability to continue as a going concefft

-io proviele an adequate retutn to shareholders

I he company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash

eeluivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

X4anagement assesses the company's capital requirements in order to maintain an e1ficien1

overall financing structure w.hile avoiding excessive leverage. 'Ihis takes into account the

subordination levels of the company's various classes of liabilities. The company manages the

capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and

the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital

structurq, the compan may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders.

Dividends 1?uore)

:

year f-rgures have been rearrangediregrouped wherever necessary"

appearing in the Financial Statements have been given in rupees ({) rounded off to

(( crore )

Particulars
As at 31st

Nl.arch,2022

As at 31st

March,2021

Total equity 164.08 t49.4r

Total equity r64.08 L49.41

Particulars
As at 31,st

N/Iarch,2022

As at 31st

March,2021

(i) Equity shares

- F'inal dividend paid (Net of Dividend Distribution Tax)

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

(iii) Interim dividend paid (Net of Dividend Distribution I ax)

5"30

6.02 5"30

/-,r'''-,I'ffit 
ryq

"i-111#;*i
(with two decimal).



SAII, REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

(All amounts in ( Crures, anless otherwise stated)

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

53" Expenditune incurred in foreign

currency on account of

KnL.lv-hou

T ntrrcsr

Rar," Mater:ial and t;r".mponents Spares

Tcnai

54. Earnings in foreign exchange on account of

Exporl of goodslCalculated on FOB basis)

55. Value of imports during the period

(Calculaterl on CIF basis)

Rarv materials

Components and spares parts

Total

56. VAI,I]E OF RAW MATERIALS, SPARE PARTS

CO]\,{PONENTS CONSUMED DURING THE YEAR

RAW MATERIALS

Imported value

Percentage

lndigenous value

Percentage

Iotal-value

Percentage

[,ess: Inter Account Adjustment

COMPONENTS AND SPARE PARTS

Imported-value

Percentage

f$&
T*ilITIIIII

Current
year

Previous

vear

Nil
Nil

48.14

Nil
Nit

43.53

48.14 43.53

NIiINil
NilNil

47.9t

0.23

41.21

/:Z

48.14 43.53

67.59

59.t17

46.07

40"53

I r 3.56

61.60

83.44

t2.82

r6.56

77.42

100.00 100.00

0.00 0.00

1 13.66 77.42

0.23

4"20

5.24

95.80

1.29

97.7'.2

0. 10

2.28

5.47 4.39

r00.00 100.00

0. 12 1.20

'1,{;l-
'At'i

. Perc(

h 'Iqtal-r, 
alu

.;alue

Adjustrnent

5.3 5 3.19


